




http://www.colfax-ca.gov/







ITEM 3A
3 0f20

CEQA AND ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

The actions requested will not result in a direct physical change to the environment or a reasonably
foreseeable indirect change to the environment, and thus is not a project as defined by the California
environmental quality Act (CEQA) Guideline Section 15378. CEQA Guidelines Section 15378(b)(5) states
that a project does not include fiOrganization or Administrative activities of governments that will not result
in direct or indirect physical changes in the environment.0 Per CEQA Guidelines Section 15378, there
cannot be a project unless the proposed action will result in fieither a direct physical change in the
environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical changes in the environment.o

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact to the City of Colfax related to this action. Previously, the Board of Supervisors
approved the financing plans on June 21, 2016, which included an allocation for implementation costs and
also called for the Authority to reimburse the County for implementation costs

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution 05-2017
2. Exhibit A, Summary of Substantive Amendments to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement for the Sierra Valley Energy Authority












ITEM 3A
Exhibit A

E. Whereas, it is the intent of this Agreement to promote the development and use of a wide
range of energy sources and energy efficiency programs, including but not limited to
hydroelectric, biomass, landfill gas, conversion of waste-to-energy, solar, and wind
energy production;

F. Whereas, Pacific Gas and Electric and Liberty Energy are the investor owned providers
of retail electric service throughout the Voting Member jurisdictions and a Community
Choice Aggregator is authorized to aggregate electrical load served by such investor
owned providers within its members’ jurisdiction. Each of the Voting Members must
adopt an ordinance electing to implement through the Authority a common Community
Choice Aggregation pursuant to California Public Utilities Code Sections 331.1(b) and
366.2(12)(A).

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and conditions
herein, the Members hereto agree to establish a joint powers authority as follows:

Section 1. Authority for this Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement

This Agreement is made pursuant to Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code
of the State of California (commencing with Section 6500) relating to the joint exercise of power
common to the counties and public agencies and other powers specified therein (hereinafter the
“Act”). Under Sections 6505 and 6507 of the Act, the Authority is a public agency separate
from its Members. As provided by Section 6508.1 of the Act, and Section 12 hereof the debts,
liabilities or obligations of the Authority shall not be the debts, liabilities or obligations of the
individual Members, unless the governing body of a Member agrees in writing to assume any of
those debts, liabilities or obligations.

The Members are each empowered by the laws of the State of California to exercise, in their
respective jurisdictions, the powers set forth herein, including but not limited to the power to
aggregate electric load, to purchase and supply electricity for themselves and customers within
their jurisdictions, and the power to enter into voluntary contractual assessments with properties
owners for authorized improvements within their jurisdictions.

Section 2. Purpose of Agreement

The purpose of this Agreement is to establish an independent public agency in order to exercise
powers common to the Members and other powers granted to the Authority under the Act, to
study, promote, develop, conduct, operate, and manage energy, energy efficiency and
conservation, and other energy-related programs, to exercise all other powers necessary and
incidental to accomplishing these purposes, and to provide a Community Choice Aggregation
(hereinafter “CCA”) Program, pursuant to California Public Utilities Code Sections 331.1 and
366.2, and as further described in Section 10.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Members also intend for this Agreement to
be used as a mechanism by which non-voting Associate Members may authorize the Authority to
provide Property Assessed Clean Energy (“PACE”) Programs pursuant to Chapter 29 of the



ITEM 3A
Exhibit A

Improvement Bond Act of 1911, Division 7 of the California Streets and Highways Code. The
Members intend that other agreements with Associate Members shall define the terms and
conditions associated with the implementation of the CCA Program, the PACE Program, and any
other energy programs approved by the Authority within the territorial jurisdiction of such
Associate Members. As of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the Associate Member include
County of Nevada, County of Sacramento, City of Grass Valley, City of Folsom, City of Nevada
City and Town of Truckee. The Authority may provide PACE Programs pursuant to Chapter 29
within the boundaries of each VVoting Member without any further action by such Voting
Members.

Section 3. Effective Date and Term

This Agreement shall be effective as an amendment and restatement of the Original Agreement,
and the Authority shall continue to exist as a separate public agency under the terms of this
Agreement upon execution by the County of Placer and the City of Colfax. This Agreement
shall be in full force and effect until terminated in the manner herein provided, subject to the
rights of the Members to withdraw from the Authority.

Section 4. Powers

The Authority shall have all powers common to the Members, and such additional powers
accorded to it by law, including the power to develop and implement comprehensive energy and
resource development and conservation programs, as described herein. Unless state or federal
law provides otherwise, any facilities, buildings or structures located, constructed, or caused to
be constructed by the Authority within the territory of the Authority shall comply with the
General Plan, zoning and building laws of the local jurisdiction within which the facilities,
buildings or structures are constructed and comply with the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA). As required by Government Code Section 6509, the power of the Authority is
subject to the restrictions upon the manner of exercising power possessed by the County of
Placer.

The Authority is authorized, in its own name, to exercise all powers and do all acts necessary and
proper to carry out the provisions of this Agreement and fulfill its purposes, including, but not
limited to, each of the following powers, subject to the voting requirements set forth in Section
5C and Section 8:

A. to make and enter into contracts;

B. to employ agents and employees, including but not limited to an Executive
Director;
C. to acquire, contract, manage, maintain, and operate any buildings, infrastructure,

works, or improvements;

D. to acquire property by eminent domain, or otherwise, except as limited under
Section 6508 of the Act, and to hold or dispose of any property;

E. to lease any property;



ITEM 3A

Exhibit A 9 0f20

to sue and be sued in its own name;

to incur debts, liabilities, obligations and to issue bonds, and to make and enter
into agreements and other documents of any nature whatsoever as may be
necessary or convenient in the exercise of the powers provided under the Act the
Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, as amended, and other provisions
of California law that authorize public agencies to issue bonds and incur
indebtedness, including but not limited to loans from private lending sources
pursuant to its temporary borrowing powers such as Government Code Sections
53850 et. seq.;

to form subsidiary or independent corporations or entities, if necessary to carry
out energy supply and energy conservation programs and to take advantage of
legislative or regulatory changes;

to deposit its money pursuant to Section 6505.5 of the Act and to invest its money
which is not required for the immediate use of the Authority, as the Authority
determines is advisable in the same manner and upon the same conditions as local
agencies, pursuant to Section 53635 of the California Government Code;

to apply for, accept, and receive all licenses, permits, grants, loans or other aids
from any federal, state, or local public agency;

to submit documentation and notices, register, and comply with orders, tariffs and
agreements for the establishment and implementation of the CCA Program and
other energy programs;

to adopt rules, regulations, policies, bylaws and procedures governing the
operation of the Authority (“Operating Rules and Regulations”);

to establish and operate a CCA program, and make and enter into service
agreements relating to the provision of services necessary to plan, implement,
operate and administer the CCA Program, including the acquisition of electric
power supply and the provision of retail and regulatory support services;

to establish and operate one or more Property Assessed Clean Energy (“PACE”)
programs pursuant to Chapter 29 of the Improvement Bond Act of 1911, Division
7 of the California Streets and Highways Code, and to enter into one or more
agreements, including without limitation, participation agreements,
implementation agreements and joint powers agreements and amendments thereto
to fulfill such programs both within and outside the jurisdictional boundaries of
the Authority;

to establish a non-voting “Associate Member” status that provides membership in
the Authority to jurisdictions that are outside jurisdictional boundaries of the
Authority’s Voting Members, but within whose boundaries a PACE, CCA, or
other energy program is established and implemented by the Authority on behalf
of the Associate Member. Said jurisdictions shall become Associate Members of



ITEM 3A

Exhibit A 10 0f 20

the Authority by adopting one or more agreements (e.g., the “PACE Agreements”
or “CCA Agreements”) on terms and conditions established by the Authority.
The rights of Associate Members shall be limited solely to those terms and
conditions expressly set forth in the PACE, CCA or other energy program
agreements for the purposes of implementing the PACE, CCA or other energy
program within the jurisdictional boundaries of the Associate Member. Except as
expressly provided for by the PACE, CCA or other energy program agreement,
Associate Members shall not have any rights otherwise granted to Authority
Members by this Agreement, including but not limited to the right to vote, the
right to amend this Agreement and the right to sit on committees or boards
established under this Agreement;

to execute agreements for the purpose of authorizing the Authority to implement,
manage and administer area-wide and regional programs in the interest of
providing energy supply, development of energy generation, energy efficiency,
resource conservation, local public welfare and other economically related energy
programs. The costs incurred by the Authority in implementing a program,
including indirect costs, shall be costs of the Authority and shall not be assessed
to the Members, unless approved by the Governing Body of the Member.

Section 5. Governance and Internal Organization

A

Governing Board. The governing body of the Authority shall consist of up to
seven (7) person Board, consisting of two (2) members of the Placer County
Board of Supervisors, and one (1) member each appointed by the Cities of Colfax,
Rocklin, Lincoln, Auburn and the Town of Loomis within Placer County that
becomes a signatory to this Agreement (“Board Member™).

The Board of Supervisors from Placer County, and the City/Town Councils from
the Cities/Town set out above shall respectively appoint such member(s) and not
less than one alternate member. The term of office of each Board Member and
respective alternate may be terminated at any time by the appointing Board of
Supervisors or City/Town Council. The designated alternate shall have authority
to attend, participate, and vote at any meeting of the Board whenever the regular
member, for whom they are designed to act as an alternate, is absent from the
meeting.

Quorum. The majority of the members of the Board shall constitute a quorum.
No action may be taken by the Board unless a quorum is present, except that less
than a quorum may adjourn a meeting from time to time.

Powers and Function of Board. The Board will exercise governance, policy
guidance and oversight over the business and activities of the Authority,
consistent with this Agreement and applicable law. Action by the Authority
Board will be taken by majority vote of the Board Members present. However, as
described in Section 8, upon request of a Board Member, a weighted vote by
shares will be conducted.















ITEM 3A

Exhibit A

to this Agreement subsequent to the filing of the then most recently filed
Implementation Plan and Statement of Intent, the Board shall direct the
preparation and filing of a new or amended Implementation Plan and Statement of
Intent to include the territory of the City as soon as reasonably practicable. The
Board may require the City to pay the cost of preparation and submission of the
Implementation Plan and Statement of Intent. Upon Public Utilities Commission
certification of the new or amended Implementation Plan and Statement of Intent
by the Public Utilities Commission, the Board shall take an action to approve the
membership of the City. The City shall then be entitled to all rights under this
Agreement, including a seat on the Board and voting rights pursuant to Section
5.A and Section 8.

E.  Termination of CCA and PACE Program. Nothing contained in this Article or this
Agreement shall be construed to limit the discretion of the Authority to terminate
the implementation or operation of the CCA or the PACE Program at any time in
accordance with any applicable requirements of state law.

F. Authority Documents. The Members acknowledge and agree that the affairs of the
Authority will be implemented through various documents duly adopted by the
Board through Board resolution. The Members agree to abide by and comply with
the terms and conditions of all such documents that may be adopted by the Board,
subject to the Members’ right to withdraw from the Authority as described in
Section 14.

Section 11. Records and Reports

The Board shall establish reporting requirements and direct staff to maintain such reports,
including, but not limited to, funds and accounts as may be required by good accounting practice
or by law. All books and records of the Authority shall be open to inspection at all reasonable
times by any Member to this Agreement or its representatives. Annual audits of the Authority’s
accounts and records shall be made by an independent CPA firm, and reports shall be filed in the
manner provided in Section 6505 of the California Government Code.

Section 12. Debts, Liabilities and Obligations

The Authority is a public agency separate from the Members. Pursuant to Sections 6508.1 of the
Act, the debts, liabilities or obligations of the Authority shall not be debts, liabilities or
obligations of the individual Members unless the governing board of a Member agrees in writing
to assume any of the debts, liabilities or obligations of the Authority. A Member who has not
agreed to assume an Authority debt, liability or obligation shall not be responsible in any way for
such debt, liability or obligation even if a majority of the Members agree to assume the debt,
liability or obligation of the Authority. Should any debt, liability or obligation of the Authority
not be waived or allowed payable through assets of the Authority, none of the County or City
members shall be liable, except as provided by Government Code sections 895 through 895.8.

Section 13. Insurance and Indemnity

The Authority shall acquire and maintain such insurance coverage as is necessary to protect the

10






ITEM 3A

Exhibit A 170£20

the Member whose termination is proposed at least 30 days prior to the regular
Board meeting at which such matter shall first be discussed as an agenda item.
The written notice of proposed termination shall specify the particular provisions
of this Agreement or other agreement that the Member has allegedly violated. The
Member subject to possible termination shall have the opportunity at the next
regular Board meeting to respond to any reasons and allegations that may be cited
as a basis for termination prior to a vote regarding termination. A Member that
has had its participation in the CCA Program terminated may be subject to certain
continuing liabilities, as described in Section 15B.

Continuing Liability; Refund. Upon a withdrawal or involuntary termination of a
Member, the Member shall remain responsible for any claims, demands, damages,
or liabilities arising from the Member’s membership or participation in the CCA
Program through the date of its withdrawal or involuntary termination, it being
agreed that the Member shall not be responsible for any liabilities arising after the
date of the Member’s withdrawal or involuntary termination. Claims, demands,
damages, or liabilities for which a withdrawing or terminated Member may
remain liable include, but are not limited to, losses from the resale of power
contracted for by the Authority to serve the Member’s load. With respect to such
liability, upon notice by an Member that it wishes to withdraw from the program,
the Authority shall notify the Member of the minimum waiting period under
which the Member would have no costs for withdrawal if the Member agrees to
stay in the CCA Program for such period. The waiting period will be set to the
minimum duration such that there are no costs transferred to remaining
ratepayers. If the Member elects to withdraw before the end of the minimum
waiting period, the charge for exiting shall be set at a dollar amount that would
offset actual costs to the remaining ratepayers, and may not include punitive
charges that exceed actual costs. In addition, such Member also shall be
responsible for any costs or obligations associated with the Member’s
participation in any program in accordance with the provisions of any agreements
relating to such program provided such costs or obligations were incurred prior to
the withdrawal of the Member. The Authority may withhold funds otherwise
owing to the Member or may require the Member to deposit sufficient funds with
the Authority, as reasonably determined by the Authority and approved by a vote
of the Board, to cover the Member’s liability for the costs described above. Any
amount of the Member’s funds held on deposit with the Authority above amounts
not required to pay any liabilities or obligations shall be returned to the Member.
The liability of any Member under this section 15B is subject and subordinate to
the provisions of Section 12, and nothing in this section 15B shall reduce, impair,
or eliminate any immunity from liability provided by Section 12.

Mutual Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by mutual agreement of
all the VVoting Members; provided, however, the foregoing shall not be construed
as limiting the rights of a Associate Member to withdraw its participation in the
CCA Program, as described in Section 14A.

12



ITEM 3A
Exhibit A

D.  Disposition of Property upon Termination of Authority. Upon termination of this
Agreement, any surplus money or assets in possession of the Authority for use
under this Agreement, after payment of all liabilities, costs, expenses, and charges
incurred under this Agreement and under any program documents, shall be
returned to the then-existing VVoting Members in proportion to the contributions
made by each. If no such contributions have been made, then such surplus after
payment of all liabilities, costs, expenses, and charges shall be distributed based
on the weighted voting shares pursuant to Section 8D. However, no termination of
this Agreement shall be effective until the full retirement of any outstanding debt.
Any Voting Member may fund the retirement of the debt for the purpose of
terminating the Authority.

E. Negotiations with Associate Members. If the Voting Members wish to terminate
this Agreement, or if the Voting Members elect to withdraw from the CCA
Program following an amendment to this Agreement as provided in Section 14B,
but two or more Associate Members wish to continue to participate in the CCA
Program, the VVoting Members will negotiate in good faith with such Associate
Members to allow the Associate Members to become the VVoting Members to this
Agreement or to effect a transfer of CCA Program operations to another entity.

Section 16. Associate Members

With the approval of the Board, any qualified public agency (as defined by Section 6500 of the
JPA law) may become an Associate and non-voting Member of this Agreement. A public
agency requesting such membership may apply by presenting to the Authority a resolution of the
public agency approving of this form of participation. The date and terms upon which the
applying public agency will become an Associate Member will be determined by the Board and
set forth in a PACE Agreement or a CCA Agreement.

Section 17. Termination of Powers

The Authority shall continue to exercise the powers herein conferred upon it until termination of
this Agreement, and thereafter shall continue to exercise only such powers as to enable it to pay
and discharge all costs, expenses, and charges legally incurred hereunder, and to dispose of,
divide and distribute any property required as a result of the joint exercise of such powers.

Section 18. Disposition of Assets; Property and Money

Upon termination of this Agreement under Section 14, all costs, expenses, and charges legally
incurred by the Authority shall be paid and discharged; and the Authority shall sell such property
as may be necessary and shall distribute to the federal or State government such property and
funds as are lawfully required; the balance of such property and any surplus money on hand shall
be distributed or returned in proportion to contributions made by the affected Members except to
the extent otherwise agreed upon by the affected Members.

Section 19. Amendments

13



ITEM 3A
Exhibit A

This Agreement may not be amended except by a written amendment approved by a vote of
Board members as provided in Section 8. The Authority shall provide written notice to all
Members of amendments to this Agreement, including the effective date of such amendments, at
least 30 days prior to the date upon which the Board votes on such amendments. Any
amendment required to add a new Voting Member shall only be executed by the Voting
Members. Any amendment required to add a new Associate Member shall only be executed by
the new Associate Member and the Authority.

Section 20. Severability

Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement be decided by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of California, or otherwise be
rendered unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining portions of provisions shall
not be affected thereby.

Section 21. Entire Agreement

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Members and supersedes all prior
understanding between them with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. There are no
promises, terms, conditions or obligations, oral or written, between or among the Members
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement that are not fully expressed in this Agreement.
This Agreement may not be modified, changed, supplemented or terminated, nor may any
obligation under this Agreement be waived, except as provided in Section 19.

Section 22. Counterparts and Effective Date

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and be as valid and binding as if each Member
signed the same copy. A faxed copy of the executed signature page shall be sufficient to cause
the terms of this Agreement to become fully operative. The effective date of the Agreement
shall be the date the second member has executed the Agreement.

14












30f72



CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA 4 of 72

Audited Financial Statements and Supplemental Information
June 30, 2016

Table of Contents

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ....oiiiiiiitiiie st e 1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ... 3

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
SEALEMENT OF NEE POSITION ...etiiiteiit ettt ettt e s st e e s et e e st e et e s sba et e ssas et essbreeessarseeessrreeessasreees 12
AN OF A CTIVITIES ...t ee e ettt et et e e e et e e ettt eeeeeee e eteeeeeeras e eeeeeeeesannrrereeeeees 13

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Governmental Funds:

Balance Sheet — GOVErNMENTAl FUNGS ........cocviiiiieiii ettt ettt e st e e e s b e e s s saanee s 14
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the

Government-wide Statement 0f Nt POSIION..........cooiiiiiiiiiii e 15
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

— GOVEIMNMENTAL FUNGS ... et e e e s s b e e e s s b be e e s s b b e e e s sabbe e s snrens 16

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the

Government-wide Statement Of ACHIVITIES .......cocveiiiiiiee e 17
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

— Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) — General FUNd ............ccocoiiiiiiiieiicse e 18

Proprietary Funds:

Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Fund — SEWer FUN..........cccoviiieeiecniec e 19
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position —

Proprietary FUNA — SEWEE FUNG ........ooiiiiie sttt sttt nas 20
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Fund — Sewer FUNd..........ccooiiiiiiiieeee e 21
Notes to the Basic Financial StatemMents..........cuoiiiiiiiiiie e e e 22

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and
Schedule of Contributions — Miscellaneous Plan (Unaudited) ..........cccevvvvieiieiiee v 44

COMBINING STATEMENTS AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
Non-Major Governmental Funds:

Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental FUNdS............ocoiiiiiiiiciniseeeen 45
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances — Nonmajor Governmental FUNGS ...........ccoovoveiiiieic i 47

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
AUAITING STANGAITAS. ...t bbbttt b et e 49









To the City Council 7 of 72

City of Colfax, California

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and
Schedule of Contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 1,
2017 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulation, contracts, grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

February 1, 2017



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Colfax (City), we offer readers of the Cityds financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. We encourage the readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial
statements and the additional information provided.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of the City exceeded liabilities at the close of Fiscal Year 2015-
2016 by $18,823,091 (Net Position) which represents an increase of 5.7% or
$1,019,295. These assets are allocated as follows:

e Net Investment in capital assets - $15,220,203. Total capital additions for
the fiscal year were $1,101,260.

e Restricted net position - $1,571,347. This amount is for both governmental
and business type activities and is restricted for capital projects, debt
service and legally segregated taxes, grants and fees.

e Unrestricted net position for combined governmental and business type
activities - $2,031,541. This is an increase of $538,104 over the previous
year. These funds may be used to meet ongoing obligations of the City.

e Total revenue from all sources was $4,620,207 of which $582,664 was from
capital grants and contributions. Total operating expenditures from all sources
were $3,600,912.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Government-Wide
Statement of Net Position on page 12 and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities
on page 13 provide information about the activities as a whole and present a longer-term
view of the City6s finances. Fund financial statements start on page 14. For
governmental activities, these statements explain how programs and services were
financed in the short term (the most recently completed fiscal year), as well as the
amounts remaining available for future spending. Fund financial statements report the
Citybs operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing
information about the Cityds most significant funds. Fund financial statements also
provide financial information about activities for which the City acts solely as a trustee or
agent (fiduciary) for the benefit of individuals and entities external to this governmental
unit.

8 of 72



Reporting the City as a Whole

Our analysis of the City as a whole begins on page 12. One of the most important
questions asked about the Cityds finances is, “Is the City as a whole better off or worse
off as a result of the year’s activities?”” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way
that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities, using
the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-
sector business entities. All of the current yeards revenues and expenses are taken into
account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Cityds net position and related changes. You can think of
the City0s net position T the difference between assets and liabilities T as one way to
measure the Cityés financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or
decreases in the Cityds net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating. To reach a conclusion on this issue, you may need to
consider other matters of a non-financial nature, such as:

e the condition of the Cityds infrastructure (streets and roadways, storm
drainage improvements, sewer system, city hall), or

e the economic vitality of the core business districts, or

e the adequacy of emergency response times of police and fire personnel,

in order to properly assess the overall health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into
two (2) kinds of activities:

1. Governmental activities: most of the Cityds basic services are reported here,
including the operations of the police, fire, building inspection, public works
and general administration. Taxes (primarily property and sales), licenses,
permits, state and federal grants, and franchise payments finance most of these
activities.

2. Business-type activities: the City charges fees to customers to cover most of
the cost of certain services and programs it provides. The Cityds wastewater
treatment operations are reported here.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds

Our analysis of the Cityos major funds begins on page 14. The fund financial statements
provide detailed information about the most significant funds T not the City as a whole.
Some funds are required to be established by State law (Gas Tax and Law Enforcement
Grants funds). However, the City Council establishes many other funds to help it control
and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal
responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other money. The Cityds two (2) kinds



of funds T governmental and proprietary (business activities/enterprise funds) T use
different accounting approaches:

e Governmental funds: Most of the Cityds basic services are reported in
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those
funds, and the balances left at year-end that may be available for future
spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method described as
modified accrual accounting. This accounting method (basis) measures the
availability of cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted
into cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term
view of the Citybs general government operations, and the basic services it
provides to residents and visitors of the City. Governmental fund information
helps you to determine what financial resources are available to be spent in
the near future to finance the Cityds programs. We describe the relationship
(or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of
Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and the governmental funds, in a
reconciliation (see pages 15 and 17).

e Proprietary funds: When the City charges customers for the full cost for the
services it provides, those services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported
in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. The Cityds
enterprise funds (Sewer Operations) are the business-type activities that we
report in the government-wide statements, but provide more detail and
additional information, such as cash flows.

THE CITY AS AWHOLE

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a governmentds
financial position. In the case of the City of Colfax, assets exceeded liabilities by
$18,823,091 at the close of the current fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the Cityds net position reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, street, sewer and storm drain systems, buildings and park assets, machinery
and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the Cityds investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debts, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The Citybs combined net position for the years ending June 30, 2016 and 2015 are
summarized (Table 1), as follows:

10 of 72



Table 1

City of Colfax, Net Position

(in Thousands)

Governmental Business
Activities Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Assets:
Current and

other assets $ 2,708 $ 2493 $ 1,381 $ 1111 $ 4,000 $ 3,604
Non-current and Capital assets 5,346 4,303 19,927 20,541 25,273 24,844

Total Assets 8,054 6,796 21,308 21,652 29,362 28,448
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension Contributions made
subsequent to measurement date 17 18 16 15 33 33
Liabilities:
Long-term

liabilities 939 681 8,740 9,107 9,679 9,788
Other liabilities 270 344 537 513 807 857

Total Liabilities 1,209 1,025 9,277 9,620 10,486 10,645
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unamortized gains on pension
investment 44 18 42 15 86 33
Net Position:
Net Investment in

capital assets 4,800 4,193 10,420 10,661 15,220 14,854
Restricted 1,036 921 535 536 1,571 1,457
Unrestricted 981 657 1,050 835 2,032 1,492

Total Net Position $ 6,818 $ 5771 $ 12,005 $ 12,032 $ 18,823 $ 17,803

The amount reported for net position of Governmental activities does not include the
value of the Citybs infrastructure (roadways, bridges and storm drainage improvements)

constructed prior to July 1, 2003.

Governmental Activities

Total revenues for Governmental Activities increased 26.7% in fiscal year 2015-2016 as
compared to the previous year. The majority of the increase was capital grants associated
with the Road Rehabilitation and Railroad Crossing Improvements projects which started
in fiscal year 2012-2013 and were completed during fiscal year 2015-2016. The Cityds
governmental activities net position increased by $1,046,458 for the fiscal year. Sources
of revenue and expenditures are noted in Table 2 below.



Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities decreased the City of Colfaxds net position by $27,163 for the
fiscal year. Detailed revenues and expenditures are reported in Table 2 below.

Table 2
City of Colfax, Change in Net Position
(in Thousands)

Governmental Business
Activities Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 304 % 198 $ 1800 $ 1,791 $ 2,104 $ 1,989
Operating grants and
contributions 150 182 - - 150 182
Capital grants and
contributions 583 144 - - 583 144
General revenues:
Sales taxes 1,104 956 - - 1,104 956
Property taxes 315 300 1 3 316 303
Other taxes and fees 274 342 - - 274 342
Earnings on investments 15 13 13 13 27 26
Other 62 80 - - 62 80
Total revenues 2,806 2,215 1,814 1,807 4,620 4,022
Expenses:
General government 481 410 - - 481 410
Public Safety 779 719 - - 779 719
Public works 355 280 - - 355 280
Engineering 8 44 - - 8 44
Culture and recreation 67 171 - - 67 171
Community development 69 92 - - 69 92
Sewer - - 1,842 1,825 1,842 1,825
Garbage - - - - - -
Total expenses 1,759 1,716 1,842 1,825 3,601 3,541
Change in net position 1,046 499 27 (18) 1,019 481
Net position, July 1
-as previously reported 5771 5,294 12,032 12,069 17,804 17,363
Restatement - (22) - (19) - (41)
Net position, July 1 5,771 5,272 12,032 12,050 17,804 17,322
-as restated
Net position, June 30 $ 6818 $ 5771 $ 12005 $ 12,032 $ 18823 $ 17,803

























CITY OF COLFAX 20 of 72

GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2016

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,138,277 $ 1,213,777 $ 3,352,054
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts 34,524 160,946 195,470
Due from other government agencies 532,914 3,513 536,427
Interest receivable 2,721 2,046 4,767
Prepaid expenses 864 864
Total current assets 2,708,436 1,381,146 4,089,582
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash 494,039 494,039
Notes receivable 117,942 19,586 137,528
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Non-depreciable 1,324,976 134,700 1,459,676
Depreciable 3,902,870 19,278,670 23,181,540
5,345,788 19,926,995 25,272,783
Total assets 8,054,224 21,308,141 29,362,365
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension 17,253 16,445 33,698
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 231,150 82,384 313,534
Accrued expenses 7,012 68,352 75,364
Unearned revenue 25,702 25,702
Current portion of long-term liabilities 6,040 386,344 392,384
Total current liabilities 269,904 537,080 806,984
Long-term liabilities:
Notes payable 427,444 8,710,752 9,138,196
Postclosure landfill costs 482,167 482,167
Compensated absences 6,040 6,466 12,506
Net pension liability 23,692 22,582 46,274
Total long-term liabilities 939,343 8,739,800 9,679,143
Total liabilities 1,209,247 9,276,880 10,486,127
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension 44,465 42,380 86,845
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 4,800,402 10,419,801 15,220,203
Restricted net position 1,036,229 535,118 1,571,347
Unrestricted net position 981,134 1,050,407 2,031,541
Total net position $ 6,817,765 $ 12,005,326 $ 18,823,091

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12



Governmental Activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community development
Engineering services
Culture and recreation
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Sewer
Interest on long-term debt
Total business-type activities

Total government

CITY OF COLFAX
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for ~ Grantsand Capital Grants Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services  Contributions & Contributions  Activities Activities Total
$ 480,971 $ 182,774 $ (298,197) $ (298,197)
779,410 117,561 $ 137,559 (524,290) (524,290)
354,710 7,135 $ 582,664 235,089 235,089
69,106 5,000 (64,106) (64,106)
7,691 (7,691) (7,691)
67,437 3,480 (63,957) (63,957)
1,759,325 303,815 149,694 582,664 (723,152) (723,152)
1,749,638 1,800,339 $ 50,701 50,701
91,949 (91,949) (91,949)
1,841,587 1,800,339 (41,248) (41,248)
$3,600,912 $2,104,154 $ 149694 $ 582,664 (723,152) (41,248) (764,400)
General revenues
Taxes:
Sales and use taxes 1,104,357 1,104,357
Property taxes 314,709 1,389 316,098
Transient occupancy tax 18,060 18,060
Franchises 81,591 81,591
Gas taxes 49,266 49,266
Motor vehicle in-lieu 125,364 125,364
Investment income 14,667 12,696 27,363
Rental income 54,115 54,115
Miscellaneous 7,481 7,481
Total general revenues 1,769,610 14,085 1,783,695
Changes in net position 1,046,458 (27,163) 1,019,295
Net position, beginning of year 5,771,307 12,032,489 17,803,796
Net position, end of year $6,817.765 _$12,005,326 _$18823,091

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

13



CITY OF COLFAX

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2016

Major Funds
Capital Nonmajor
General Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,499,214 % 4852 $ 634,211 $ 2,138,277
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful accounts 34,524 34,524
Due from other governmental agencies 370,127 155,652 7,135 532,914
Interest receivable 2,017 (80) 784 2,721
Notes receivable 73,923 44,019 117,942
Due from other funds 125,597 125,597
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,105402 $ 160,424 $ 686,149 $ 2,951,975
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 193262 $ 29998 $ 7890 $ 231,150
Accrued expenses 5,280 1,732 7,012
Unearned revenue 25,702 25,702
Due to other funds 125,597 125,597
Total liabilities 224,244 155,595 9,622 389,461
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue 28,325 7,135 35,460
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES 28,325 7,135 35,460
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 44,019 44,019
Committed 395,000 395,000
Restricted 813,544 625,373 1,438,917
Unassigned 672,614 (23,496) 649,118
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1,881,158 (23,496) 669,392 2,527,054
TOTAL LIABILITIES,
DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND
FUND BALANCES _$ 2,105402 ¢ 160424 _$ 686,149 _$ 2,951,975

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

14









CITY OF COLFAX

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
government-wide statement of activities and changes in net position, the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital assets recorded in the
current period.

Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

Governmental funds report proceeds from disposal of capital assets as revenues.
However, in the government-wide statement of activities only the gain or (loss)
on the sale of capital assets is reported. This is the difference between the gain
or (loss) and proceeds.

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Government-wide Statement of
Net Position. Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net
position. These are the amount by which repayments exceed proceeds.

Gard Family Living Trust note payments
Postclosure landfill costs
Issuance of note payable

Some receivables are deferred in the governmental funds because the amounts
do not represent current financial resources that are recognized under the
accrual basis in the statement of activities.

Deferred revenue recognized

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not expenditures in the
governmental funds.

Change in compensated absences
Change in deferred outflow of resources
Change in net pension obligation
Change in deferred inflow of resources

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

17

$ 373,538

1,058,243
(133,365)

212,920
54,394
(530,800)

35,460

(4,160)
(394)
7,056

(26,434)
$ 1,046,458






CITY OF COLFAX

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND - SEWER FUND

June 30, 2016

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,213,777
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $20,000 160,946
Notes receivable 19,586
Due from other governmental agencies 3,513
Interest receivable 2,046
Prepaid expenses 864
Total current assets 1,400,732
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted cash 494,039
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 134,700
Depreciable 19,278,670
Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 19,413,370
Total assets 21,308,141
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 16,445
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 82,384
Accrued expenses 68,352
Current portion of long-term liabilities 386,344
Total current liabilities 537,080
Long-term Liabilities:
Bonds payable, long-term portion -
Notes payable, long-term portion 8,710,752
Compensated absences 6,466
Net pension liability 22,582
Total long-term liabilities 8,739,800
Total liabilities 9,276,880
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unamortized gains on pension investments 42,380
NET POSITION:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 10,419,801
Restricted 535,118
Unrestricted 1,050,407
Total net position $ 12,005,326

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

19



CITY OF COLFAX

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Operating revenues:
Service charges
Permits
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Operation and maintenance
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Income from operations

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Interest income
Tax assessment
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

PROPRIETARY FUND - SEWER FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

20

$ 1,751,499
18,556

30,284
1,800,339

392,246
722,107
635,285
1,749,638

50,701

12,696
1,389

(91,949)
(77,864)

(27,163)
12,032,489

_$ 12005326



CITY OF COLFAX

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND - SEWER FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees and related benefits
Cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Tax assessments received
Cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Capital expenditures
Debt principal paid
Settlements paid
Interest paid
Cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received
Payments received on issued notes
Cash used for investing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the statement of net position:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Reconciliation of operating income from operations to cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in pension obligation and related deferred inflows (outflows)
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
(Decrease) increase in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued compensated absences

Cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

21

$ 1,819,692
(705,316)

(358,026)
756,350

1,829
1,829

(43,017)
(351,721)
(14,259)
94,254

(503,251)

11,482
741
12,223

267,151
1,440,665

_$ 1707816
$ 1,213,777
494,039

_$ 1707816

$ 50,701
635,285
21,927
19,353
16,791

6,978

5,315

S 756350






31 0f72

(This page intentionally left blank.)












CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA 350f72

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2016

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

An allowance for doubtful accounts of $20,000 has been provided for the Sewer Fund for accounts that
are deemed uncollectible.

Property Taxes: The County of Placer (the County) is responsible for the collection and allocation of
property taxes. Under California law, property taxes are assessed and collected by the County up to 1%
of the full cash value of taxable property, plus other increases approved by the voters and distributed in
accordance with statutory formulas. The City recognizes property taxes when the individual installments
are due, provided they are collected within 60 days after year end. Secured property taxes are levied on
or before January 1 of each year. They become a lien on real property on January 1. These taxes are paid
in two equal installments; the first is due November 1 and delinquent with penalties after December 10;
the second is due February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 10. Secured property taxes, which
are delinquent and unpaid as of June 30, are declared to be tax defaulted and are subject to redemption
penalties, costs and interest when paid. These taxes are secured by liens on the property being taxed.

The term “unsecured” refers to taxes on personal property other than land and buildings. Property tax
revenues are recognized in the fiscal year for which they are levied, provided they are due and collected
within sixty days after fiscal year-end. The County apportions secured property tax revenue in
accordance with the alternate methods of distribution, the “Teeter Plan,” as prescribed by Section 4717 of
the California Revenue and Taxation code. Therefore, the City receives 100% of the secured property tax
levies to which it is entitled, whether or not collected. Unsecured delinquent taxes are considered fully
collectible.

These taxes are accrued as intergovernmental receivables only if they are received from the County
within 60 days after year end for the governmental funds and are accrued when earned for government-
wide presentation regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.

Capital Assets: Capital assets for governmental fund types of the City are not capitalized in the funds
used to acquire or construct them. Capital acquisitions are reflected as expenditures in the governmental
fund, and the related assets are reported in the government-wide financial statements at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Contributed capital assets are recorded at their
estimated fair market value on the date donated.

Public domain (infrastructure) capital assets consisting of certain improvements other than buildings, but
including roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems
have been capitalized prospectively beginning July 1, 2003.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets’ lives are not included in the current year’s additions to governmental or business-type capital
assets. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 50 years
Sewer facility improvements and design costs 20 to 40 years
Safety equipment 5to0 10 years
Vehicles and heavy equipment 5 to 15 years
Furniture and other equipment 5to 7 years

25






CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA 370f72

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2016

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Nonspendable Funds — Fund balance should be reported as nonspendable when the amounts cannot
be spent because they are either not in spendable form, or are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact. Nonspendable balances are not expected to be converted to cash within the next
operating cycle, which comprise prepaid items and long-term receivables.

Restricted Funds — Fund balance should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use
of resources are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Funds — Fund balance should be reported as committed when the amounts can only be
used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the government’s
highest level of decision-making authority, the City Council. These amounts cannot be used for any
other purpose unless the City Council modifies, or removes the fund balance commitment.

Assigned Funds — Fund balance should be reported as assigned when the amounts are constrained by
the government’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned Funds — Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification of the City’s funds and
includes all spendable amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific
purposes.

Net Position: The government-wide financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position
is categorized as investment in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted and unrestricted.

Net Investment in Capital Assets — This category groups all capital assets into one component of net
position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.

Restricted Net Position — This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position — This category represents net position of the City not restricted for any
project or other purpose.

The City Council establishes, modifies or rescinds fund balance commitments and assignments by
passage of a resolution. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted, committed, assigned and unassigned
resources as they are needed. The City’s committed, assigned, or unassigned amounts are considered to
have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those
unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

27















CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2016

NOTE D — CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 was as follows:

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2015  Additions  Retirements  Transfers  June 30, 2016

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 758,329 $ 530,800 $ 1,289,129
Construction in progress 235,793 455,029 $ (654,975) 35,847
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 994,122 985,829 - (654,975) 1,324,976
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 4,345,353 72,414 654,975 5,072,742
Vehicles 419,525 419,525
Machinery and equipment 382,298 382,298
Furniture and fixtures 6,764 6,764
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 5,153,940 72,414 - 654,975 5,881,329
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (1,048,064) (131,053) (1,179,117)
Vehicles (407,968) (2,312) (410,280)
Machinery and equipment (382,298) (382,298)
Furniture and fixtures (6,764) (6,764)

Total accumulated depreciation (1,845,094) (133,365) -
Capital assets being

(1,978,459)

depreciated, net 3,308,846 (60,951) - 654,975 3,902,870
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET _$ 4,302,968 § 924878 § - $ - $ 5,227,846
Depreciation expense for governmental capital assets was charged to functions as follows:

General governmental $ 13,942

Public safety 2,536

Public works 37,189

Culture and recreation 10,770

Community development 68,928

Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 133,365

32


















CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA 48 of 72

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
June 30, 2016

NOTE G - PENSION PLANS

Plan Descriptions: All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the
City’s cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). The City has the following cost-sharing rate plans:

e Miscellaneous Plan

e PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan

Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and Council resolution. CalPERS issues
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website at
www.calpers.ca.gov.

Benefits Provided: CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 (52 for PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan) with
statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of
service. The death benefit is the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments
for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
Plan Plan
(Prior to (On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013) January 1, 2013)
Benefit formula (at full retirement) 2.0% @ 60 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 63 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.092% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates - union 5.000% 6.500%
Required employee contribution rates - non-union 7.000% 6.500%
Required employer contribution rates 7.489% 6.724%

In addition to the contribution rates above, the City was also required to make payments of $1,224 toward
its unfunded actuarial liability during the year ended June 30, 2016. The Miscellaneous Plan is closed to
new members that are not already CalPERS eligible participants.

Contributions: Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan
are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year,
with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute the
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

38



CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2016

NOTE G — PENSION PLANS (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the employer contribution made to the Plan was $33,408 for the year
ended June 30, 2016.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions:
As of June 30, 2016, the City reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability of $46,274.

The City’s net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014 rolled
forward to June 30, 2015 using standard update procedures. The City’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The City’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 was as follows:

Miscellaneous

Plan
Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.00231%
Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.00169%
Change - Increase (Decrease) (0.00062)%

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the City recognized pension expense of $72,288. At June 30, 2016, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Plan
combined from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 31,812
Change in assumptions $ (17,840)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments (8,943)
Difference between expected and actual experience 1,886
Adjustment due to differences in proportions (60,062)
Total $ 33,698 $ (86,845)

39






CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
June 30, 2016

NOTE G — PENSION PLANS (Continued)

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without
reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.65 percent investment return assumption used in
this accounting valuation is gross of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be
15 basis points.

Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term expected rate of return should be determined net of pension
plan investment expense but without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The discount
rate was changed from 7.50 percent (net of administrative expense in 2014) to 7.65 percent as of the June
30, 2015 measurement date to correct the adjustment which previously reduced the discount rate for
administrative expense.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term
(first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-
term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated
above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class for the Plan. The rate of
return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and
asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New Strategic Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(b)
Global Equity 51.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.0% (0.55)% (1.05)%

Total 100.0%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

41

































62 of 72

Special Revenue Total
Nonmajor
Mitigation Beverage Oil Fire Governmental
Funds Recycling Grant Capital Funds

$ 49,266

930

$ 5,000 $ 84,351 319,290

$ 930 $ 138 14 493 3,745
930 138 5,014 84,844 373,231

10,359 10,359
11,372 111,372

250 183,285

118 118

10,359 250 118 11,372 305,134
(9,429) (112) 4,896 73,472 68,097
49,055
(72,375)
(23,320)

(9,429) (112) 4,896 73,472 44,777
237,909 33,051 2,919 66,675 624,615

$ 228480 $ 32939 % 7815 $ 140,147 $ 669,392

48






To the City Council 64 of 72

City of Colfax, California

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Areharooar>o & Lompony, 4P

February 1, 2017

50



50 Howe Avenue, Suite 210
Sacramento, California 95825

Telephone: (916) 564-8727
FAX:(916) 564-8728

GOVERNANCE LETTER

To the City Council
City of Colfax
Colfax, California

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Colfax, California (the City), for the year
ended June 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated February 1, 2017. Professional standards
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards), as well as certain information related to the
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated
June 24, 2016. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information
related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government Auditing
Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated June 24, 2016, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your
oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your
responsibilities.

As part of our audit, we will consider the internal control of the City. Such considerations are solely for
the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal
control.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will also perform tests of the Cityds compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions is
not an objective of our audit.

Generally accepted accounting principles provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI) to
supplement the basic financial statements. Our responsibility with respect to managementds discussion and
analysis, which supplements the basic financial statements, is to apply certain limited procedures in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. However, the RSI will not be audited and, because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance, we will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; therefore, our audit involves judgment about the number of transactions to be
examined and the areas to be tested.






To the City Council 67 of 72

Page 3

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or
the auditords report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our
audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated February 1, 2017.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a fisecond opiniono on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the Cityds financial statements or a determination of the type of auditorfs
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Cityds auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to
our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) listed in the table
of contents, which are RSI that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with managementds responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the
RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on the Combining and Individual Statements, which accompany the financial
statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that
the information complies with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or
to the financial statements themselves.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

February 1, 2017






To the City Council
City of Colfax

We would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the courtesy and assistance extended to us during
the course of the audit. This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council,
management, and others within the organization and does not affect our report dated February 1, 2017 on
the financial statements of the City.

February 1, 2017






City Council
City of Colfax
Page 2

4. We compared the prior year appropriations limit presented in the accompanying Appropriations Limit
Calculation to the prior year appropriations limit adopted by the City Council for the prior year.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

5. We recalculated the 2015/2016 Appropriation Limit by multiplying the product of the two above
factors by the 2014/2015 appropriation limit.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

6. We compared the Cityfs actual revenues to the computed appropriation limit for fiscal year
2015/2016.

Finding: For the 2015/2016 fiscal year, the Cityds actual revenues subject to the appropriations limit
did not exceed the appropriation limit adopted by resolution of the City Council.

We were not engaged to, and did not, perform an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of
an opinion on the accompanying Appropriations Limit calculation. Accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that
would have been reported to you. No procedures have been performed with respect to the determination
of the appropriation limit for the base year, as defined by Article XI11-B of the California Constitution.

This report is intended solely for the use of the City of Colfax and should not be used by those who have

not agreed to the procedures and taken responsibility for the sufficiency of the procedures for their
purposes. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

February 1, 2017



APPENDIX A

CITY OF COLFAX
APPROPRIATION LIMIT CALCULATION
Year Ended June 30, 2016

APPROPRIATION LIMIT
ADOPTED BY CITY:

Recorded in Final 2015/2016 Budget $ 2,008,127

APPROPRIATION LIMIT
COMPUTATION PER REVIEW:

2015/2016 Appropriation Limit $ 1,940,060

Cost of living factor:
Change in California per capita income 1.0382

Population Adjustment Factor:
Population change in City of Colfax 0.9970

Auditor computed limitation 2,008,128

Variance $ (€5)









3of5

e He commended Sergeant Conners for the remodel of the Sheriff Substation and
Open House event.

e He stated rainfall for the season is 546, which is xso0 TTOA OAETFAIl OETAA OEA 1A00
meeting.

Councilmember Douglass

e Councilmember Douglass attended the SACOG meeting and had good discussions
with the mayors of Auburn, Winters and Galt. These meetings provide good ideas
and networking for topics which are apropos for Colfax such as skateparks and
roundabouts.

e He also attended the Sierra Vista Community Center Board meeting, met with the
Mayor of Sacramento, and enjoyed the Substation Open House and the Chamber of
Commerce meeting.

Mayor Pro Tem Hesch

e Mayor Pro Tem Hesch congratulated Councilmember Mendoza on her
appointment to the Council.

e He attended the substation Open House and a PCTPA Board meeting.

e He will meet next week with the PCTPA Executive Director to explore the
possibility of Colfax being included in a new proposal for sales tax designated for
road repairs.

5B.  City Operations - City Staff
City Manager Schempf

e City Manager Schempf congratulated Councilmember Mendoza and thanked the
Council for making a quick decision.

e The City came through the storms relatively well. There were reports of a few
potholes and a small crack at the Wastewater Treatment Plant which turned out to
be a minor issue.

e City Manager Schempf commented the Workshop earlier today went well. Staff
will be working on the General Plan for the City and updating the Municipal Code.

City Attorney Cabral

e City Attorney Cabral stated a new ordinance should be adopted to add fines for
Building Code infractions. It is a good mechanism to put teeth into the Code
Enforcement process.

Mayor Harvey challenged each council member to create a list of four items in the
Municipal Code which need to be eliminated or updated.

5C. Additional Reports - Agency Partners
Officer Chris Nave, California Highway Patrol Gold Run Area Public Information Officer
e Officer Nave stated the storms have kept officers busy with road closures and
accidents.
e He reminded everyone of two new laws z mobile phones must be mounted or truly
hands free and children under two years of age must travel in rear facing car seats.
Battalion Chief Ty LaBelle, CAL FIRE
e Chief LaBelle stated CAL FIRE has been busy with storm related calls.
e The City volunteer fire department has been meeting for training on Thursday
nights. They are looking for more volunteers.

City of Colfax 3
City Council Minutes January 25, 2017



3A0CAATO #1TTAOCH OIAARO #TOTOU 3EAOLEH0 /HEAA #T1EAG 30A0OAGTT #1 T TATAAD

e Sergeant Conners thanked everyone for coming to the Substation Open House.

e He announced Devon Bell has been appointed to complete the term of retiring
Sheriff Edward Bonner. He is pleased with the appointment.

e He would like to organize a luncheon for Sheriff Bonner to thank him for his
service to Colfax.

e Sergeant Conners introduced three Probation Officers which now have an office in
the substation.

Mayor called a brief recess at 8:55PM.
He called the meeting back to order at 9:00PM.

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS
6A. Proposal for Business Development, Jonelle Tannahill
STAFF PRESENTATION: John Schempf, City Manager
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Discuss and approve proposal.

City Manager Schempf introduced Jonelle Tannahill. He stated he likes the idea of this proposal
because economic development requires considerable follow-up to gain momentum and be
effective.

Ms. Tannahill gave a presentation outlining her proposal. She would conduct research to
develop a baseline and tracking system to monitor progress, publish an online newsletter
regularly which would include calendars and volunteer opportunities, and meet with the
Chamber and businesses regularly. Her proposal involves approximately 20 hours each week for
about 1 year.

Council discussed the proposal, expressing concerns that the City has had several economic
development presentations with no significant impact.

City Manager Schempf reminded Council the proposal includes weekly reinforcement and would
therefore have more lasting results. This would be an at-will contract and worth the experiment.

Council is reluctant to expend more funds outside of the proposed budget. They would prefer to
have the Chamber of Commerce involved in the decision-making process.

Alan Shuttleworth, Area Resident, stated Ms. Tannahill would be able to bring all of the groups in
Colfax together and make a cohesive effort to improve the economic environment.

Foxey McCleary, 127 Saunders Lane, stated she has found Colfax business owners are very
reluctant to participate in programs such as this.

spend funds to duplicate efforts and resources already provided at no cost to the City through
OEA 6EOE0TOI0 Bureau. She stated the Bureau has marketing tools and has already completed a
tourism inventory for the City. Ms. Tannahill will probably not need to do the research she
suggested in her proposal. She stated it normally takes two years to get an economic plan
working. The Bureau is willing to work more closely with Colfax.

City of Colfax 4
City Council Minutes January 25, 2017



Lynn Tausch, Colfax business owner, stated the economic development presentations the City
had in the past lacked action steps. She suggested the City should hire someone who would
be in charge of implementing ideas.

Councilmember Stockwin suggested Council schedule a public meeting to see if there is any
interest from business owners for this type of service.

Ms. Rowe suggested recruiting new business owners from other areas. As prosperity comes
to the town, the current owners will have motivation to participate in economic development
programs.

Council agreed to table this topic until Staff can return with an updated proposal, perhaps
including a well-advertised public meeting and a more structured timeline for activities.

6B. 2017 Goals and Objectives from Workshop/Special Meeting of January 25, 2017
STAFF PRESENTATION: John Schempf, City Manager
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve goals as presented.

City Manager Schempf stated Council and staff had a good meeting today. Staff will prepare a
CTAI1E00 ATA AAIATAAO Tk AATAE TAOE AAOAQ £1T0 #TOTAEI0 ADDOTOAIS
ADJOURNMENT

As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Harvey adjourned the meeting at
10:05PM.

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 22nd day of February, 2017

City of Colfax 5
City Council Minutes January 25, 2017



1of1

City of Colfax

City Council Minutes

Special Meeting of Wednesday, January 25, 2017
City Hall Council Chambers

33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA

1 OPEN SESSION
1A.  Call to Order
Mayor Harvey called the open session to order at 1:05PM.
1B. RollCall
Council members present. Douglass, Harvey, Hesch, Stockwin
2 PUBLIC COMMENT
2A.  There was no public comment at this time.
3  WORKSHOP
3A.  Staff Items
City Manager Schempf explained the workshop format.
Planning Director Feagans handed out information and explained the requirements for
General Plans. She recommends updating the Land Use Element and the Transportation
Element. She also recommended cleaning up the Zoning Code. Council requested staff
provide a timeline and cost analysis for completing these tasks. Staff will work with the
General Plan/Circulation Element Update Committee as progress is made on these
projects.
3B. Council Items
Each Council member contributed to the list of items which should be addressed. These
included: Downtown economic viability, Community pool, Railroad museum, Trail from
Whitcomb Avenue to downtown, Sewer Servide Rate Study, CDBG loans, Gateway
monuments and advertising, Road improvement, and Hiring a grant writer.

Tim Ryan, 300 S Main Street, Lynn Tausch, Colfax business owner, and Marnie Mendoza, 9
Depot Street were present and joined the discussion.

Council recommended staff develop a calendar with benchmark dates for updating
several documents including the Sewer Service Rate Study, the ADA Transition Plan,
CDBG Grant applications, the Employee Handbook and the General Plan Zoning and
Transportation Elements.

4 ADJOURNMENT
As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Harvey adjourned the meeting at
2:45PM.

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 22nd day of February, 2017

City of Colfax 1
City Council Minutes Special Meeting January 25, 2017



ITEM 4C

FOR THE FEBRUARY 08, 2017 COUNCIL MEETING

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director
DATE: January 23, 2017
SUBJECT: City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: December 2016

X | N/A FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept and file City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: December 2016.

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:

These monthly financial reports include General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation). The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis
and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports, and bank statements.
Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget
process each year.

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for Council and the public of the
financial transactions of the City.

The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in
December 2016. Monthly highlights include:
e Negative cash fund balances are due to timing of funding allocations and reimbursements.
o Fund 250 - Streets& Roads ¢ Funding through PCTPA is expected by April 2017.
o Fund 280 ¢ Recycling ¢ Grant Funds were received in early January ($5,000)
o Fund 370 ¢ Capital Funds ¢ Funding is based on reimbursement at end of project
e The quarterly payment for Sheriff services for FY17-Q2 was paid at the end of November - $156,401.
This payment was processed in December in the previous two fiscal years.
e The first allocation of FY2016-2017 property taxes and delinquent sewer charges placed on tax rolls
(County Teeter process) has been received in January 2017.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs
a. Cash Analysis ¢ Balance
b.  Expenses by Month
c. Revenues by Month
2. Cash Activity Reports
a. Cash Summary
b.  Cash Transactions Report ¢ by individual fund
c.  Check Register Report - Accounts Payable
d. Daily Cash Summary Report (Cash Receipts)









ITEM 4C

Aepy

(spuesnoyy ui siejjoq)
YIuoAl Aq sasuadx3 - yse) paAIasdy pund [eiauan

910z 49quiadaq - Xe}|0J 30 A1)

inr

0STS






ITEM 4C

60f11
5
$ ;
$ , 5 .8)
, 5.3 § 3
Fund Type: 1.14 - General Fund - Restricted
Fund: 571 - AB939 Landfill Diversion $ 29,317.26 $ - $ -
Fund: 572 - Landfill Post Closure Maintenance  $ 779,292.89 § - 3 (11,660.37)
Fund Type: 1.14 - General Fund - Restricted $ 11, 0.7 §
Fund Type: 1.24 - Special Rev Funds - Restricted
Fund: 210 - Mitigation Fees - Roads $ 34,124.76 $ - $ (2,247.49) 1, 77
Fund: 211 - Mitigation Fees - Drainage $ 3,054.01 §$ - $ - $ 3, .1
Fund: 212 - Mitigation Fees - Trails $ 42,785.73 $ - $ - $ 2,7
Fund: 213 - Mitigation Fees - Parks/Rec $ 97,980.69 $ - $ - $ 79 .
Fund: 214 - Mitigation Fees - City Bldgs $ 94595 $ - $ - $ .95
Fund: 215 - Mitigation Fees - Vehicles $ 4,500.05 $ - $ - 5 .0
Fund: 217 - Mitigation Fees - DT Parking $ 26,669.11 $ - $ - , 1
Fund: 218 - Support Law Enforcement $ 4,717.01 § 11,862.09 $ - 6,5 .10
Fund: 241 - CDBG Housing Rehabiliation $ 94,429.79 $ - $ - , 979
Fund: 244 - CDBG MicroEnterprise Lending $ 116,513.99 $ 500.00 $ - 1 7,013. 9
Fund: 250 - Streets - Roads/Transportation $ (58,661.42) $ 270.00 $ (8,467.56) , 58.
Fund: 253 - Gas Taxes $ 18,187.30 $ 3,832.40 $ (1,519.68) $ , .0
Fund: 270 - Beverage Container Recycling $ 32,986.22 $ 5,000.00 $ - 3,9 6.22
Fund: 280 - Oil Recycling $ (713.63) $ - $ (95.60) ( .2
Fund: 286 - Community Projects $ 527427 § - $ - 5 .
Fund: 292 - Fire Department Capital Funds $ 147,427.34 $ - $ - 7, 3
Fund: 342 - Fire Construction - Mitigation $ 243258 $ - $ - 4 5
Fund: 343 - Recreation Construction $ 2,433.03 §$ - $ - $ 2, 0
Fund Type: 1.24 - Special Rev Funds - Restric $ 1,3.3 4,
Fund Type: 1.34 - Capital Projects - Restricted
Fund: 350 - Street Improvement Projects $ 24,069.78 $ - $ -
Fund: 370 - North Main Street Bike Route $ (31,286.31) $ - $ - )
Fund Type: 1.34 - Capital Projects - Restricted $ $
9 .0
53
9, 13
1,0 .00
,186.7
4, 5

Fund Type: 9.0 - CLEARING ACCOUNT
Fund: 998 - PAYROLL CLEARING FUND $ - $ - $ -
Fund Type: 9.0 - CLEARING ACCOUNT $













ITEM 4C

98121 2 12/29/2016 CR 250-000-1000 90.00 0.00 90.00
2/29/2016 Daily Totals 90.00 0.00 90.00
Fund: 250 - Streets - Roads/Transportation TOTALS: 270.00 0.00 270.00
und: 253 - Gas Taxes
98141 2 12/30/ 016 CR 253-000-1000 3.832.40 0.00 383 .0
12/30/20 6 Daily Totals 3,832.40 0.00 3,832.40
Fund: 253 - Gas Taxes TOTALS: 3,832.40 0.00 3,832.40
Fund: 280 - Oil Recycling
978 7 2 12/09/2016 CR 280-000-1000 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00
12/09/20 6 Daily Totals 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00
Fund: 560 - Sewer
97839 12/05/2016 CR 560-000-1000 860.23 0.00 860.23
12/05/2016 Daily Totals 860.23 0.00 860.23
98073 8 12/14/2016 CR 560-000-1000 738 0.00 4,743.28
2/ 4/2016 Daily Totals 4,743.28 0.00 4,743.28
98116 2 12/23/2016 CR 560-000-1000 200.00 0.00 200.00
12/23/20 6 Daily Totals 200.00 0.00 200.00
























Diversification — The investment portfolio will be diversified to avoid incurring unreasonable
and avoidable risks regarding specific security types or individual financial institutions.

A. In a diversified portfolio it must be recognized that occasional measured losses are

inevitable, and must be considered within the context of the overall portfolio's
investment return, provided that adequate diversification has been implemented.

Prudence — The City adheres to the "prudent person rule™ which obligates a fiduciary to insure
that: "...investments shall be made with the exercise of that degree of judgment and care, under
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in
the management of their own affairs, not for speculation but for investment considering the
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived."

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The most effective method of increasing investment yields without sacrificing safety is to extend
the investment horizon commensurate with the City's cash requirements. To that end, improved
cash forecasting and management is the preferred investment strategy for the City.

A. Cash management activities include accurate cash projections, the expeditious collection
of revenue, the control of disbursements, cost-effective banking relations, and a short-
term borrowing program, when needed, that coordinates working capital requirements
and investment opportunity.

ALLOWABLE INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS

The Government Code, Sections 53601, 53601.1 and 53635 shall govern the City's allowable
investments, and the length of those investments, unless specifically limited by this policy.
Although the maximum maturity for any deposit or investment is five years, most investments
should be for no longer than 2-3 years. All investments of City funds shall be made in
accordance with California Government Code Sections 53601, et seq. and 53635 et seq., or in
accordance with California Government Code 16429.1 authorizing investments into the State
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Investments will be authorized by the City Manager,
City Treasurer, Finance Director or Mayor only.

REPORTING REQUIRMENTS

City staff shall submit a quarterly investment report to the City Council. The report must be
submitted to the City Manager for the agenda within 30 days following the end of the month
covered by the report, and is required under Government Code Section 53646. Such report shall
include at least the following information:

e Types of investments;
Name of the institution in which funds are invested or deposited;
Date of maturity, if applicable;
Par and dollar amount investment for all securities;
Percent distribution of each type of investment or deposit; current market value as of the
date of the report, including source of the valuation except those under LAIF;
e Rate of interest;















ITEM 4E



ITEM 4E
5 0f 26















ITEM 4E






ITEM 4E
12 0f 26






ITEM 4E
14 of 26

. FY 20857 EST LA TED EXPERDITURES




ITEM 4E
15 0f 26

i, FY 20787 ESTINATED EXPENDITUSES
















ITEM 4E






LightRail to Aubt

—

' 40114

5

10 -

TS

ITEM 4E
22 of 26









Commuter Bus Service (Placer Commuter Express)
Commuter Bus Contract for FY 2016/17 = $586,879

Revenue from Fares =

Net Program Cost for FY 2016/17 = $187,079

Percentage of COLFAX residents riding Commuter Bus Service from Jan. 2013
on-board survey = 2.8%

[TOTAL COMMUTER SERVICE CHARGE = $187,079 x 2.8% = 5,238.21 = $5,238|

Calculation of Bus Replacement Costs for Placer County Transit
City of Colfax

Total Bus Cost for 5 year Plan $ 3,727,685

Grant Funds (credit) $ 2,678,300

Remaining Cost to County $ 1,049,385 Allocation of Service Miles
Number of buses 11 Local Service 8,230
Cost per bus (after grants) $ 95,398.64 LRT Extension 387
Lifetime bus miles 500,000 Total 8,617
Cost per lifetime bus mile $  0.1908

Colfax Service Miles 8,617

Reimbursement for FY 2016/17 $ -

‘Total Annual Charge $ -

FTA 5311 Operating Assistance

As described in Section |IB.
(Credit for FY 16/17 = |

ITEM 4E

25 of 26






ITEM 4F

2017 Committee Assignment List

Committee Colfax Meeting Reimbursement/
Representative Information Stipend
Placer CounéyéaErcao(r:DoCnélgBD)evelopment Kim Douglass 3" Thursday Submit to City/
Various Meeting Locations Alt: Tony Hesch 4X/year No Stipend
We|mar., Applegate,_CoIfax/MumCIpaI Will Stockwin 6:00 pm Submit to City
Advisory Council (WAC/MAC) Alt: Tony Hesch 3" Wednesda No Stipend
City of Colfax, Council Chambers ' y y P
Sierra Econo_m|c Development Kim Douglass 1:00 pm Submit to City
Corporation (SEDCorp) Alt: Marnie Mendoza | 1% Wednesda No Stipend
560 Wall Street, Suite F, Auburn ' Y P
Sacramento Area Council of Kim Douglass 9:30 am Submit to SACOG
Governments (SACOG) - . rd )
1415 L. St. Sacramento Alt: Will Stockwin 3" Thursday $100 Stipend
Placer Cognty Air Pollution Control Tony Hesch nd2:30 pm Submit to PCAPCD
District (PCAPCD) Alt: Steve Harve 2" Thursday $100 Stipend
BOS Chambers 175 Fulweiler Ave. Auburn ' y 6X/year P
Placer Mgiss‘i';‘igto(ﬁl\)’\fgg; Control Will Stockwin 4:30 pm Submit to City
. )
2021 Opportunity Dr. Roseville No Alternate 3" Monday $100 Stipend
Project Go Kim Douglass 5:30 pm Submit to Project Go
801 Vernon St, Roseville Alt: Tony Hesch 3" Thursday No Stipend
Placer Cour;\tge'lr']r:;?gg_rrtslt&?n Planning Tony Hesch o 9:00 am Submit to PCTPA
BOS Chambers 175 Fulweiler Ave. Auburn Alt: Steve Harvey 4" Wednesday $100 Stipend
Local Agency Formation Commission ) . .
(LAFCO) BOS Chambers Colfax s rotated out | \‘,"\}grf’égd . zigg";ttf’ ;3’
175 Fulweiler Ave. Auburn y P
; 9:00am . .
Solid Waste Task Force st Submit to City
Auburn Veterans Hall 100 East St Auburn Wes Heathcock 1 zzl;;?day No Stipend
Placer Sierra Fire Safe Council Will Stockwin 6:00 pm Submit to City
City of Colfax Council Chambers Alt. Marnie Mendoza 4" Thursday No Stipend
. . Submit to City
Placer County Selection Committee Mayor Yearly No Stipend
League of California Cities Sacramento Marnie Mendoza AX/vear Submit to City
Valley Division Liaison Alt: Steve Harvey y No Stipend
Bianchini Advisory Board Tony Hesch No Stipend
Sierra Vista Liaison Kim Douglass No Stipend
Colfax Schools Liaison Kim Douglass No Stipend

Submitted for Approval 2-22-2017




ITEM 4F
2017 Committee Assignment List

Council Committees

Grants Oversight Steve Harvey
(approves change orders over $5,000) Kim Douglass
Steve Harvey

Land Use Tony Hesch

Steve Harvey

Risk Assessment Marnie Mendoza

General Plan/Circulation Element Update Steve Harvey

Tony Hesch

Landfill Discussion Representative Kim Douglass
. . Kim Douglass
Animal Control Alternatives Will Stockwin
Will Stockwin

Employee Handbook Kim Douglass

Steve Harvey

NID Tony Hesch
Steve Harvey
CDBG Tony Hesch

Submitted for Approval 2-22-2017









2 of 4

Some highlights from our review:

General Fund revenues are expected to be 4% higher than the Adopted budget due to an increase in
Sales tax revenue projections. This is a conservative forecast as Sales Tax revenues are very difficult
to project — but, year to date actuals indicate a favorable upward trend.

General Fund expenditures are expected to be within 1% of budget.

The health benefit and staffing changes that were approved earlier in the year do not have a major

impact on our projections.

o A higher percentage of employees elected the lower cost option (waiver stipend) for health
benefits than estimated in our cost analysis which resulted in minimal increase overall in health
benefit costs.

o The impact of staffing changes is minimal this year. The new positions are being filled so late in
the year and any increases are offset by the Working Supervisor position which had been
budgeted to be filled at the beginning of the year.

Special revenue/Capital project Funds show a projected increase of $15,000 in expenditures. A

shade structure for the playground equipment at the City Park has been added to the project list.

Other capital projects that have been added for the fiscal year include: Guardrail improvements, a

street patch and paving project, and the purchase of a new SCADA system for the Wastewater

Treatment Plant. All of these projects are included in the expense projections reflected in the

analysis. No expenditures will be made until capital projects are brought forward to Council for

approval.

Enterprise Funds (Sewer) revenues are projected to be right on the budgeted amounts.

Enterprise Funds (Sewer) expenses are expected to be 4% lower than budgeted primarily due to

unexpended contingency funds for legal expenses and lower than anticipated sludge removal costs.

An analysis of the unfunded pension liability for the City indicates that our reserve of $45,000 is

adequate based on current data. The City participates in a cost sharing (Risk Pool) plan with

CalPERS. CalPERS annually produces an Actuarial Valuation report which sets the employer

contribution rates each fiscal year. The City has been making the contributions to the plan as

required by this valuation report. In addition, as part of our year-end accounting, we are required
to complete a complex calculation based on our membership in the Pool using a GASB 68 actuarial
valuation repot, which is different from the report used to determine the contributions, to properly

reflect our Net pension liability on our audited financial statements. The calculation for June 30,

2016 reported $46,000 liability. There is no indication that the City liability needs to be adjusted at

this time. CalPERS has announced that they will be making a change to their discount rate in the

coming year, which will change the unfunded liability the City currently has recorded. Staff will
continue to closely monitor this unfunded liability.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

We recommend a review of the Adopted Budget for fiscal year 2017-2018 be completed by June 1%.

Attachments

1
2.

Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Mid-Year Budget Review ¢ Fund Summary
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Mid-Year Budget Review ¢ Proposed Capital Expenditures






4 of 4

Fund

100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
570

571
572

210-17
218
241-44
250
253
270
280
286
292

370
3XX
3XX
3XX
350

560
561
563
565
567

City of Colfax - FY2016-2017

Mid Year Budget Review -Fund Summary

Revision Date: February 15, 2017

Net Change in Fund Balance
Revenues Expenses Transfers In/(Out) (Revenues - Expenses +/- Transfers)
Estimated | Adopted Estimated | Adopted Estimated | Adopted Estimated | Adopted
Dept Actuals Budget Difference Actuals Budget Difference Actuals Budget Difference Actuals Budget Difference
General Fund - Unrestricted
000 1,710,000 | 1,641,450 68,550 - (102,302)]  (102,302) - 1,607,698 | 1,539,148 68,550
100 Central Services - - 119,279 119,279 - - - (119,279)] (119,279) -
110 City Council - - 21,000 23,150 (2,150) - - (21,000)]  (23,150) 2,150
120 Administration/Finance - - 183,000 [ 174,105 8,895 - - (183,000)[ (174,105) (8,895)
160 Legal - - 48,000 60,000 (12,000) - - (48,000) (60,000) 12,000
200 Fire - - 57,000 63,500 (6,500) - - (57,000)]  (63,500) 6,500
300 Sheriff - - 528,300 528,300 - - - (528,300)| (528,300) -
400 Building Department - - 70,000 72,900 (2,900) - - (70,000) (72,900) 2,900
425 Engineering - - 16,000 20,000 (4,000) - - (16,000) (20,000) 4,000
450 Planning - - 52,000 57,600 (5,600) - - (52,000)]  (57,600) 5,600
500 Buildings and Grounds - - 424,019 424,019 - - - (424,019)| (424,019) -
530 Parks - - 77,333 77,333 - - - (77,333) (77,333) -
Land Development - - 20,650 20,650 - - - (20,650) (20,650) -
Garbage - - - - - - - -
Total General Fund - Unrestricted 1,710,000 | 1,641,450 68,550 1,616,581 | 1,640,836 (24,255) (102,302)| (102,302) - (8,883)] (101,688) 92,805
General Fund - Restricted
AB939 Landfill Diversion - - - - - (30,767) (30,767) - (30,767) (30,767) -
Landfill - Postclosure Maint 80,000 80,000 - 78,825 78,825 - - - 1,175 1,175 -
Total General Fund - Restricted 80,000 80,000 - 78,825 78,825 - (30,767) (30,767) - (29,592) (29,592) -
Special Revenues
Mitigation Funds 825 825 - 15,000 - 15,000 (40,000) (40,000) - (54,175) (39,175) (15,000)
Support Law Enforcement 100,000 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 - - - - - - -
CDBG Program Income 1,500 1,500 - 6,000 6,000 - - - - (4,500) (4,500) -
Streets-Roads/Transportation 110,288 110,288 - 253,563 236,063 17,500 143,275 125,775 17,500 - - -
Gas Taxes 56,906 56,906 - 19,101 19,101 - (65,135) (65,135) - (27,330) (27,330) -
Beverage Recycling - - - - - - (33,052) (33,052) - (33,052) (33,052) -
Used Oil Grant - - - 2,924 2,924 - - - (2,924) (2,924) -
Community Projects - - - 5,246 5,246 - - - (5,246) (5,246) -
Fire Capital Fund 12,000 12,000 - 56,000 56,000 - (4,838) (4,838) - (48,838) (48,838) -
Total Special Revenues 281,519 281,519 - 457,834 425,334 32,500 250 (17,250) 17,500 (176,065)| (161,065) (15,000)
Capital Projects
North Main St Bike Route 220,000 220,000 - 249,000 249,000 - 29,000 29,000 - - - -
Ballpark/Bleachers/Shade - - - 33,052 33,052 - 33,052 33,052 - - - -
Corp Yard Security/Recycle Imp| - - - 30,767 30,767 - 30,767 30,767 - - - -
EV Charging Station - 127,500 (127,500) - 145,000 (145,000) - 17,500 (17,500) - - -
180 interchange - Prelim study - - - 40,000 40,000 - 40,000 40,000 - - - -
Total Capital Projects 220,000 347,500 | (127,500) 352,819 497,819 | (145,000) 132,819 150,319 (17,500) - - -
Enterprise Funds
Sewer WWTP Maint and Ops 1,071,588 | 1,071,588 - 1,125,000 | 1,171,864 (46,864) - - (53,412)| (100,276) 46,864
Sewer Collections Systems 184,500 184,500 - 186,575 207,306 (20,731) - - - (2,075) (22,806) 20,731
WWTP/Debt Service 475,860 475,860 - 438,974 438,974 - 85,100 85,100 - 121,986 121,986 -
G.0. Bonds 185 185 - 7,750 7,750 - - - (7,565) (7,565) -
Inflows and Infiltration 85,100 85,100 - - - (85,100) (85,100) - - - -
Total Special Revenues 1,817,233 | 1,817,233 - 1,758,299 | 1,825,894 (67,595) - - - 58,934 (8,661) 67,595
TOTAL ALL FUNDS [ 4,208,752 4,167,702] (58,950)| [ 4,264,358 | 4,468,708 | (204,350)| | -] -] - | [ (155,606) (301,006) 145,400 |




10of9

FOR THE FEBRUARY 22, 2017 COUNCIL MEETING

FROM: John Schempf, City Manager
PREPARED BY: Alfred “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney
DATE: 2/22/2017
SUBJECT:  Ordinance poH Adopting Provisions and Procedures for Administrative Fines.

® | N/A FUNDED UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: FROM FUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Introduce the proposed ordinance by title only, waive the first reading and
schedule a public hearing, second reading and adoption at the March 8, 2017 regularly scheduled
Council meeting, to be effective 30 days thereafter.

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY:
Colfax Municipal Code (the “Code”) Chapter 1.24 establishes and provides that Code violations can be

prosecuted as misdemeanors or infractions and associates ranges of fines and possible imprisonment depending on

the level of violation. Under the Code, misdemeanor violations can carry fines of up to $500 and imprisonment in the
county jail for a period not more than six months. Individuals convicted of infractions are subject to a $50 fine for the
first conviction, $100 for a second conviction within one year and $250 for a third conviction within one year. Each
day a violation exists is counted as a separate violation. Pursuing misdemeanors and infractions are criminal
prosecutions.

The Code also allows the City to pursue various civil remedies, generally related to converting criminal fines
to civil judgments and seeking injunctive and other non-monetary relief. Conspicuously absent from the Code is a
process whereby the City can issue administrative orders requiring citizens to come into Code compliance, and
imposing fines if they do not. The purpose of the proposed ordinance is to adopt provisions and procedures allowing
the City to administratively issue citations for Code violations and to administratively impose fines on individuals who
fail to comply.

The proposed ordinance adds Chapter 1.25 to the Code and establishes circumstances under which fines can
be imposed, a process for imposing them, and amounts of fines for Code violations. Fines on non-residential
properties are proposed to be $100 per day for each first Code violation, $200 per day for each second Code violation
within one year and $500 per day for each subsequent Code violation within one year. Residential fines are proposed
to be $10 per day for each first Code violation, $25 per day for each second Code violation within one year and $100
per day for all subsequent Code violations within one year. Residences for purposes of this ordinance include single
family residences and multi-family residences containing four or fewer permitted residential structures.

The process begins with a notice of violation to owners of property on which violations exist. No fines will be
imposed unless a property owner first fails to comply with a written notice of violation. With the exception of
violations that create an immediate health and safety issue, the notice will allow at least 30 days to cure violations
before fines are imposed. Failure to comply with a written notice of violation within the time allowed will subject a
property owner to an administrative citation and an administratively-imposed fine.








http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.100
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.120
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.130
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.140
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.150
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.160

1.25.010 Applicability.

This Chapter provides for administrative citations, fines and penalties, as allowed by Government Code Section 53069.4,
which are in addition to all other civil or criminal remedies which the City may pursue to address any violation of this
Code. Use of this Chapter shall be at the sole discretion of the City, and shall not limit the discretion of the City to pursue
any other remedies.

1.25.020 Enforcement Officer—Defined.

For the purposes of this Chapter, “enforcement officer” shall mean any City employee or agent of the City with the
authority to enforce any provision of this Code and includes, without limitation, the City Manager or his/her designee, the
City Attorney, the Community Services Director, the Chief Building Official and any other City officer or employee or
agent authorized to serve as enforcement officer.

1.25.030 Fines.

A. Amount of Fine—General. Any responsible person shall be subject to an administrative fine in the amounts set forth
below. Responsible person shall mean any of the following:

1. A person who causes a code violation to occur;

2. A person who maintains or allows a code violation to continue, by his or her action or failure to act;

3. A person whose agent, employee, or independent contractor causes a code violation by its action or failure to
act;

4. A person who is the owner of, lessee or sublessee with a current right of possession of real property where a
property related code violation occurs;

5. A person who is the on-site manager of a business who normally works daily at the site when the business is
open and is responsible for the activities at such premises;

6. A person who is the beneficiary under a deed of trust for the property where a property related violation exists
and that person has not corrected the violation within thirty days after being notified by the City in writing of
the violation;

7. A person who has received a permit, license, or any type of land use approval (e.g., building permits, tentative
maps, subdivision maps, conditional use permits, variances), who has failed to comply with all conditions
imposed upon the permit, license or other approval.

8. A person who fails to timely comply with any nuisance abatement order issued by any City enforcement
officer or City official.

For purposes of this subdivision, “person” means and includes a natural person, corporation, limited liability company,
limited liability partnership or other legal entity, and the owners, corporate officers, trustees, and general partners of a

legal entity. There shall be a rebuttable presumption that the record owner of a parcel as listed on the most recent equalized

property tax assessment rolls and a lessee or sublessee of a parcel has notice of any code violation existing on the
premises. For purposes of this Chapter, there may be more than one responsible person for a violation.

B. Amount of Fine: Specific Properties.

1. Single and Multi-Family Residences. For first-time violations of a Chapter or Section of this Code on single
and multi-family residences, the administrative fine shall be ten dollars per violation for each and every
calendar day that the violation is not abated following the deadlines set forth in the notice of violation. For a
second violation of a Chapter or Section of this Code on single and multi-family residences within one year of
the first, the administrative fine shall be twenty-five dollars per violation for each and every calendar day that
the violation is not abated or recurs following the deadlines set forth in the notice of violation. For each

additional violation of a Chapter or Section of this Code on single and multi-family residences within one year,

the administrative fine shall be one hundred dollars per violation for each and every calendar day that the
violation is not abated or recurs following the deadlines set forth in the notice of violation. The maximum

161214 Building and Fire Code Ordinance 2

4 0of 9


http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=gov&group=53001-54000&file=53060-53087.6

amount of the administrative fine set forth above may be increased or decreased by resolution of the City
Council. For purposes of this Section, “multi-family residences” includes residential structures described in
Section 17.64.080 of this Code that contain four or fewer duly permitted residential units and excludes all
other use type classifications described in Chapter 17.64 of this Code.

2. Commercial, Industrial and All Other Properties. For first-time violations of a Chapter or Section of this Code
on commercial, industrial and all other properties that are not single or multi-family residences, the
administrative fine shall be one-hundred dollars per violation for each and every calendar day that the violation
is not abated following the deadlines set forth in the notice of violation. For a second violation of a Chapter or
Section of this Code on commercial, industrial and all other properties that are not single or multi-family
residences, the administrative fine shall be two-hundred dollars per violation for each and every calendar day
that the violation is not abated or recurs following the deadlines set forth in the notice of violation. For each
additional violation of a Chapter or Section of this Code on commercial, industrial and all other properties that
are not single or multi-family residences within one year, the administrative fine shall be five- hundred dollars
per violation for each and every calendar day that the violation is not abated or recurs following the deadlines
set forth in the notice of violation. The maximum amount of the administrative fine set forth above may be
increased or decreased by resolution of the City Council.

C. For violations of Chapters of this Code which are specifically declared to be misdemeanors, the administrative fine
shall be not less than two hundred fifty dollars nor more than one thousand dollars for each and every calendar day that the
violation is not abated or recurs following the deadlines set forth in the notice of violation.

D. For violations of this Code which by their nature cannot be remedied or abated, including, but not limited to, unlawful
discharges to the sewage or storm drain system, an administrative citation pursuant to Section 1.25.060 may immediately

be issued without the necessity of a notice of violation first being served.

E. Payment of a fine under this Chapter shall not excuse or discharge any continuation or repeated occurrence of the
Code violation that is the subject of the administrative citation.

1.25.040 Notice of Violation.

A. Whenever an enforcement officer determines that a violation has occurred, the enforcement officer shall have the
authority to issue a notice of violation to any person responsible for the violation. Service of the notice shall be made as set
forth in Section 1.25.050.

B. Each notice of violation shall contain at least the following information:

The date of the violation;

The address or a reasonably accurate description of the location where the violation occurred or is occurring;

The section of this Code violated and a description of the violation;

An order prohibiting the continuation or repeated occurrence of the violation described in the administrative

citation following a specified date. When the violation concerns building, plumbing, electrical or other similar

structural or zoning issues that do not create an immediate danger to health or safety and/or threat to the
environment, the order shall provide for at least thirty days to correct or otherwise remedy the violation prior
to imposition of the fine;

5. Notice that if the violation is not abated by the expiration of the specified time, or recurs after the expiration of
such time period, the owner will be subject to an administrative fine under this Chapter for each and every day
following expiration of the deadline that violations recur or that violations are not corrected, and the amount of
such daily fine;

6. The name and signature of the citing enforcement officer.

N

161214 Building and Fire Code Ordinance 3

50f9


http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.050

1.25.050 Service of Notices.

The notice of violation, administrative citation and any and all other notices required to be given by this Chapter shall be
served either by personal delivery to the person to be notified or by deposit in the United States mail, in a sealed envelope
postage prepaid for first-class delivery, addressed to such person at the person’s last known business or residence address
as it appears in the public records or other records pertaining to the matter to which such notice is directed. Service shall
be deemed complete at the time notice is personally served or deposited in the mail. The address of owners shown on the
most recent equalized assessment roll shall be conclusively deemed to be the proper mailing address for such notice.
Failure of any person to receive notice shall not affect the validity of any proceedings taken hereunder.

1.25.060 Administrative Citation.

A. Upon expiration of any deadline(s) set forth in the notice of violation, the enforcement officer shall inspect the
premises and determine if the violation(s) has been corrected. If the responsible person does not consent to such
inspection, the enforcement officer shall apply to the Placer County Superior Court for issuance of an inspection warrant
pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Part 3, Title 13, as amended or replaced from time-to-time. If upon
inspection the enforcement officer determines that the violation(s) has not been corrected or has recurred, the enforcement
officer shall serve upon the responsible parties an administrative citation imposing the fines set forth in this Chapter.

B. The administrative citation shall contain:

1. The date(s) of re-inspection or the date of violation;

2. The address or a reasonably accurate description of the location where the violation occurred,;

3. The section of this Code violated and a description of the violation;

4. The amount of the fine, or the minimum and maximum amount of the fine for violations pursuant to

Section 1.25.030C.

5. A description of the fine payment process, including a description of the time within which and the place to
which the fine shall be paid,;

6. A description of the administrative citation review process, including the time within which the administrative
citation may be contested, and the place from which to obtain a request for hearing and/or an advance deposit
waiver request form;

7. The date of the citation, and the name and signature of the citing enforcement officer.

C. Anadministrative citation may be immediately issued, without prior service of a notice of violation, for violations
which by their nature cannot be remedied or abated, including but not limited to unlawful discharges to the sewer or storm
drain system.

1.25.070 Hearing Request.

A. Any recipient of an administrative citation may contest the existence a violation of this Code or that he, she or it is the
responsible party by completing a request for hearing form and returning it to the enforcement officer within ten days from
the date of service of the administrative citation, together with an advance deposit of the fine or a request for an advance
deposit hardship waiver pursuant to Section 1.25.080 of this Chapter. Where the fine is imposed pursuant to

Section 1.25.030(C) of this Chapter, only the minimum range of the fine is subject to the advance deposit requirement. If a
request for hearing is not filed in a timely fashion, the maximum fine shall be imposed and recovered pursuant to the
procedures set forth in Section 1.25.150 of this Code.

B. The person requesting the hearing shall be notified of the time and place set for the hearing at least seven days prior to
the date of the hearing.

161214 Building and Fire Code Ordinance 4


http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.150



http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SanPablo/html/SanPablo01/SanPablo0110.html#1.10.080



http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=gov&group=53001-54000&file=53060-53087.6



http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=ccp&group=01001-02000&file=1021-1038
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=gov&group=53001-54000&file=53060-53087.6

	00A 170222 Agenda
	03A Community Choice Energy
	170222 SR SVEA Community Choice Energy
	Resolution 05-2017 Community Choice Energy - SVEA JPA Ammendmetn
	Sierra Valley Energy Authority Amended  Restated JPA Agreement v6 redlin...

	03B Audit Report as of June 30, 2016
	01 Colfax Outline
	02 City of Colfax June 30 2016 AFS
	Blank Page

	03 City of Colfax SAS 114 Letter 2016
	04 City of Colfax ML 2016
	05 City of Colfax App Limit Rpt 2016

	04A 170125 Regular Meeting Minutes
	04B 170125 Special Meeting Minutes
	04C Cash Summary Report December 2016
	2017-06 Staff Report Cash Summary Dec 2016
	170222 Cash Summary Data

	04D Quarterly Investment Report
	Quarterly Investment Report Dec 2016
	170222 Quarterly Investment Data
	Investment policy - Sept 2014

	04E PCTPA Fund Data
	SR PCTPA Fund Request
	Resolution 06-2017 Transit funds
	PCTPA Fund Data

	04F 170222 2017 Committee Assignments
	04G  2016 Building Dept Report to Council
	07A Mid Year Budget Review
	Staff Report - Mid Year Review Feb 2017
	Budget Review Data

	07C Ordinance 532
	170217ch_Staff Report Rev 1
	170217bh_Ordinance Clean




